
 

TBA 100912 Page 1 
 

PAHRUMP TOWN BOARD MEETING 

NYE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 

2100 E WALT WILLIAMS DRIVE 

TUESDAY – 7:00 P.M. 

October 09, 2012 

MINUTES 
 

PRESENT:        

 Town Board:          

Vicky Parker 

Harley Kulkin 

Dr. Tom Waters 

Mike Darby       

Staff: 

Michael Sullivan, Finance Director 

Scott Lewis, Fire Chief 

Matt Luis, Buildings & Grounds Manager 

Samantha Carns, Executive Assistant 

 

1. Call to Order, Moment of Silence, and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Vicky Parker called the meeting to order. 

 

Tom Waters led in the moment of silence and Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Moving the Order of or Deleting an Agenda Item(s).   

 

Dr. Waters requested item 17 be removed and item 6b handled separately. 

Harley Kulkin said he wished to leave the item on the agenda. 

Mike Darby said he would like to see the item referred to staff. He also mentioned item 13b needed to 

be read separately as it concerned his employer. 

3. Presentation by Mr. Octavio Morales pertaining to the St. Therese Mission.   

 

Mr. Morales was not present. 

 

4. Announcements   

 

Announcements were read by Dr. Waters. 

 

Paula Elefante reminded all the Bob Baker Wild West Extravaganza would take place the following 

weekend. 

 

5. Public/Board/Staff Comment 

 

Mrs. Parker said they would allow public comment on each action item provided comments were 

brief, on topic, and not slanderous in any manner. 

 

Public comment was heard. 

 

Mrs. Parker thanked staff for all they did during the Fall Festival as well as the volunteers such as 

Rodney Camacho, Blake Arnold, Marilyn and Bill Dolan, Robert Tibbits, and Debbie Wise.  



 

TBA 100912 Page 2 
 

She also said they managed to raise a combination of over 250 tickets between Rodeo and 

Carnival for underprivileged children. 

 

Dr. Waters said he too wanted to thank the staff and volunteers for the Fall Festival and also Vern 

Van Winkle of KPVM-TV and Karen Jackson of KNYE-Radio for their work on the parade. 

 

He spoke of the Town Board's trip to the Nevada League of Cities. He said that during economic 

development meetings, Pahrump had come up many times however investors felt disturbed by 

what they had heard in the newspaper. He asked citizens express their support for growth 

publically should they feel that support. 

 

Mr. Darby thanked all who made the Fall Festival a success.   

 

Mr. Kulkin touched on the Fall Festival saying it was always the same individuals who stepped up 

and thanked all involved. 

He asked to direct staff to move forward with creating a motorcycle event in Pahrump and bring 

back a proposal for the Board to entertain. 

He too spoke of the Nevada League of cities, saying he felt citizens needed to come together if 

they were going to make a difference in the Town. 

 

6. Discussion and Possible Decision Consent agenda items:   

a. Action – Approval of Town Vouchers. 

b. Action – Approval of Town Board meeting minutes for August 14, 2012 and September 11, 

2012. 

c. Action – Nomination of the Pahrump Town Manager to complete the remaining term (Jan 

2011 to Dec 2013) for the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee (CIP). 

d. Action – Nomination of the Pahrump Fire Chief to serve on the Capital Improvement 

Advisory Committee (CIP) for a term of Jan 2013 to Dec 2014. 

 

Dr. Waters motioned to approve item 6b with changes. 

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 

 

Mr. Kulkin motioned to approve items a, c, and d. 

Dr. Waters seconded. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 
 

7. Advisory Board Reports from Advisory Board Chairpersons and/or Town Board Liaisons on the 

Status of Advisory Boards.   

 

Dr. Waters said the Youth Advisory Board was expecting a large turnout of students as he had 

spoken to members of the High School ROTC classes and many students seemed very excited. He 

said that having had the opportunity to sit in on one of these classes, he saw many excited and 

patriotic youth who had a lot of great ideas. He said these were all outstanding young men and 

women encouraging all to come out and attend the Youth Advisory Board meeting.  Mr. Darby 

said the Arena Advisory had mainly been focused on the Fall Festival Rodeo at their previous 

meeting while the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board had focused on field re-allocation. 

 

Jose Telles, Vice Chair of the PVMAB, stated for the past two months they had not had a meeting 

however the Columbarium procedure had been in the works and now completed. He said the 

Veterans Advisory Board would just need to approve it on October 18th then turn it over to staff. 

He said on November 13th they should be able to announce they were ready to receive Veterans. 



 

TBA 100912 Page 3 
 

He spoke of the various sub-committees on the Board. 

 

John Whitney, Chairman of the newly formed Civic Center Advisory Board. He said various 

members of the CCAB had made the decision to not meet until January. 

He stated they had constructed a survey at the Fall Festival which would be available to the Town 

Board after the CCAB had the ability to look at it first before presenting to the Board. 

He said they were looking forward to having a presentation from Dr. Waters concerning Nevada's 

Open Meeting Law.  

Mr. Kulkin suggested the CCAB consider having a meeting simply to hear the Open Meeting Law. 

 

8. Discussion and Possible Decision of a proposed Public Private Partnership between the Town of 

Pahrump and Front Sight Firearms Training Institute to lobby for the creation of enabling 

legislation for a special economic development zone that can assist Front Sight in their desired 

expansion needs and address future development needs such as Adventure Springs at the 

appropriate time.   

 

Mr. Kulkin introduced former Nevada Governor List. 

 

Governor List introduced himself, Mr. Jeremy Aguero, and Mr. Guy Hobbs. 

He said they believed they had a proposal which could bring great things to Pahrump. 

He spoke of the process which brought them to the Board meeting and the proposal on the table. 

 

Mr. Aguero spoke of the possibility of the possibilities of economic impact analysis. 

He proceeded to make their presentation, stating the Firearms industry was a rapidly growing 

industry with Front Sight at the lead of a lot of this. He also spoke of the impact of Front Sight 

customers at the local economy as well as employment statistics in Nye County.  

 

Mr. Hobbs spoke stating that as a practitioner in Public Nevada for over 30 years, the laws which 

provided Economic Development were conservative. He said as this was an example of an 

economic opportunity to these trying economic times. He spoke of similar events which had 

happened in recent years within the State which had led to changes in Public Financing Laws 

which provided great examples for the Nevada Legislature. 

 

Governor List spoke of the process of which this would proceed should it be passed.  

 

Dr. Waters thanked the gentlemen for their presentation. He said he knew Front Sight would be 

willing to step up and mentioned there were other local businesses which could greatly benefit 

from this and he would like to see more players involved. 

Governor List said this was the very beginning on gathering ‘interested’ parties.   

 

Mr. Darby said he was glad to see Mr. Aguero had not lost any of his enthusiasm thanking him for 

his presentation.  

He said one of the issues which had been brought up during the presentation was that as an 

unincorporated Town, Pahrump could not issue bonds. He also asked about the statement of those 

entities that could issue bonds.   

Mr. Aguero stated after speaking with individuals involved in Front Sight, they made the 

preliminary assumption around 80% of students stayed in Pahrump while around 20% stayed in 

Las Vegas. 

Mr. Hobb stated generally the bonds would be issued by a newly created body under a municipal 

district such as the County level upon formation. 

Mr. Darby said if the Town was spending the money on such an item they would like to have a say 

in the project. Mike Meacher of Front Sight stated the location was annexed into Pahrump in 2009 

with operations having begun in 1999 bisected between Nye County and Clark County. 

 



 

TBA 100912 Page 4 
 

Mr. Kulkin thanked the gentlemen for their tremendous presentation. He said that although he did 

not know much about economics, he knew Pahrump had tremendous potential and believed they 

should trust the judgment of such professionals. He said he knew the Board was dedicated to 

moving forward. 

 

Mrs. Parker said it was an excellent presentation and thanked each of the gentlemen. 

 

Dr. Waters motioned to direct staff to formalize a proposed agreement for the Board's 

consideration at a later meeting to enter into a partnership with Front Sight, Nye County, & 

other local businesses for lobbying services for enabling legislation for special economic 

zones that can assist the Town & other entities in their economic development. 

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Public comment was heard. 

 

Mr. Kulkin stated this not only benefited the Town of Pahrump but other communities, the 

County, and the State. He said all they were saying should they vote on this item they would just 

be saying they wanted to move forward. 

 

Mr. Darby said he believed Front Sight was an amazing facility however his only concern was that 

they were not in the Town limits of Pahrump therefore it concerned him to be put monetary 

backing behind an organization outside of Town limits. 

 

Governor List asked Board members remember this legislation they were looking at proposing 

would have application State wide, not only in the interest of Front Sight. 

 

Motion carried, 3-1, with Mr. Darby voting nay. 

 

Governor List thanked the Town Board for their consideration and time and said they hoped this 

was something which could drive economic development through the state of Nevada in the 

future. 

 

Mrs. Parker called for a 5 minute recess. 

 

Mr. Darby said he had been corrected and shown that Front Sight was within the Pahrump town 

limits. 

 

9. Discussion and Possible Decision to Approve the Town of Pahrump Entering into an Economic 

Development Contract with BEC Environmental, Inc. for Economic Development Support 

Services in an amount not to exceed $25,000.00 payable from the Economic Development Room 

Tax Fund.   

 

Rachel Kryder of BEC Environmental introduced herself and proceeded to present a PowerPoint 

presentation as outlined in the backup. 

 

Mrs. Parker said she felt the ladies with BEC environmental was very easy to work with and felt 

they would be a great asset considering the Town no longer had an Economic Development 

Manager on staff. 

 

Mr. Darby asked where the funds would be coming for this. 

Mr. Sullivan stated it would come from the Economic Development Room Tax Fund. 

 

Mr. Kulkin said he did not see the value in investing in this when the County was driving 

businesses away. 



 

TBA 100912 Page 5 
 

He said he appreciated what BEC had done for the County however did not see much of what was 

happening for Pahrump. He said he felt the Town needed to follow through with the Fairgrounds 

development project and they did not have an endless supply of money. 

 

Mrs. Parker stated BEC aided in securing two grants for the Bob Ruud Community Center and 

their instrumental involvement in the completion of Simpkins Park. 

Mrs. Parker clarified this would be a contract where the Town would give BEC $25,000 a year 

and the Town would tell BEC what they wanted them to work toward. 

Mrs. Kryder expanded on what their grant services entailed. 

 

Mr. Darby said he did not see a recommendation from Staff in the backup. 

Mr. Sullivan said the staff had worked with BEC on various occasions. He said this would 

essentially be to keep a retainer with BEC environmental for future services. 

 

Dr. Waters motioned to approve. 

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Public comment was heard. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 

 

10. Discussion and Possible Decision to Approve a Letter of Support from the Pahrump Town Board 

for the Draft “Community Source Water Protection Plan for Public Water Systems in Nye County 

Nevada”.   

 

Darrell Lacy of the Nye County Water District introduced himself and spoke briefly on the history 

of the study. He also stated the study was for information purposes, not regulatory. 

 

Mrs. Kryder went over the presentation which had been given at the previous Town Board 

meeting. 

 

Dr. Waters motioned to approve a letter of support from the Pahrump Town Board for the 

draft “Community Source Water Protection Plan for Public Water Systems in Nye County 

Nevada”.   

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Public comment was heard. 

 

Mr. Kulkin asked to recall his second based on a comment from the public. He asked Dr. Waters 

amend his motion to state it would not apply to private wells and septic tanks. 

 

Dr. Waters motioned to approve a letter of support from the Pahrump Town Board for the 

draft “Community Source Water Protection Plan for Public Water Systems in Nye County 

Nevada” and include in the letter that it would not apply to private wells and septic tanks.   

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 

 

11. Discussion and Possible Decision on proceeding forward with the Bell Vista Shooting Range 

(BVSR) and All Matters Properly Related Thereto.   

 

Robert Adams, Chair of Public Lands Advisory Board, introduced himself and two members 

present. He and Mike Zaman detailed a presentation concerning the plans for the shooting range. 



 

TBA 100912 Page 6 
 

Mr. Zaman spoke of the previous tourism presence and the possibility of doing more tourist 

experiences involving this shooting range along with local training opportunities and events. 

 

Mr. Darby asked if the PLAB had given any thought to a layout such as the impressive facility in 

Beatty. 

Mr. Zaman said for the first phase they could start and expand over time. 

 

Mr. Adams stated County Zoning had the area zoned for a shooting area. 

 

Dr. Water motioned to direct staff to determine suitability of site for possible acquisition by 

for the Town of Pahrump for possible development of a shooting park using the Public 

Lands Advisory Board outline. 

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 

 

12. Discussion and Possible Decision to Select, Award, and Approve Funding for Bid #2012-01A for the 

Field "C" Lighting Project Payable from the Park Impact Fees and Other Matters Properly Related 

Thereto.   

 

Matt Luis stated the bid had been selected previously however due to complications they had to go 

out to bid once again and this was the result. 

 

Mr. Kulkin motioned to award funding for bid #2012-01A for the Field "C" Lighting Project 

Payable from the Park Impact Fees to Industrial Light and Power for $239,800 and all matters 

properly related thereto. 

Mr. Darby seconded. 

 

Motion approved, 4-0. 

 

13. Discussion and Possible Decision to make Recommendation(s) to the Pahrump Regional Planning 

Commission (RPC) pertaining to the following cases:   

a. CU-12-0014  

b. CU-12-0015 

c. CU-12-0016 

d. ZC-12-0008 

e. PM-12-0006 

 

Mr. Darby stated because of his employer he will be abstaining from item b. 

 

Mr. Kulkin said he would like to pull the item as they did have a liaison. He said he understood 

there was a need to physically inspect the properties 

Mrs. Parker said she agreed for the same reasons and also that as a member of the RPC voting 

on this item would be limiting her ability. 

 

Mr. Darby commented that this should have been pulled under item 2 as it was now 10:25 and 

individuals had needed to stay at the meeting for this agenda item as it had not been pulled 

previously. 

 

Mr. Kulkin motioned to withdraw this item. 

Mr. Darby seconded. 

 

Public comment was heard. 

 



 

TBA 100912 Page 7 
 

Bret Meich, Legal Counsel, stated while the item could be heard Mrs. Parker would need to 

abstain if a stand was taken by the Board on this item. 

 

Mr. Kulkin apologized as he did not realize someone was at waiting for this item. 

 

Dr. Waters said he would like to hear some of the information which they could receive from 

the Town Manager. 

 

Mr. Darby said that as a Libertarian, he felt this was an item which the Government shouldn't 

be involved in as it should be a personal citizen choice. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 
 

14. Discussion and Possible Decision to Approve Staff Placing a Request for Proposal (RFP) in the local and 

regional newspapers for a Professional Event Organizer to Manage future Fall Festival Events.  

 

Dr. Waters motioned to approve. 

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Mr. Kulkin said a lot of great people came together to make the event happen this year however it was a 

lot to ask for the same people to come forward over and over. 

 

Public comment was heard. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 
 

15. Closed Session(s). 

a. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding a Closed Session, to receive information and advice 

from the Town Attorney regarding potential or existing litigation pursuant to NRS 

241.015(2)(b)(2).   

 

Mr. Darby motioned to go into closed session. 

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 
 

16. Discussion and Possible Decision to Ratify the Town Board's Public Vote of July 24, 2012, to Initiate 

the Town's Lawsuit Against Nye County Challenging the County's Failure to Follow State Law in the 

Placement of a Question on the Next General Election Ballot.   

 

Mr. Meich stated this item was placed on the agenda pursuant to an argument made by the County 

and their motion to dismiss. He said this action would remove one of the County's arguments from the 

court's consideration on Monday. 

 

Dr. Waters motioned to ratify the Town Board's Public Vote of July 24, 2012, to initiate the 

Town’s lawsuit against Nye County Challenging the County's failure to follow State law in the 

placement of a question on the next general Election Ballot. 

Mr. Kulkin seconded. 

 

Mr. Darby said as he voted not to initiate the lawsuit he could not ratify his vote. 

 

Mr. Meich stated that if Mr. Darby voted yea on this item it would be ratifying his no vote from July 

24th. 

 



 

TBA 100912 Page 8 
 

Mr. Kulkin said he felt the Town needed to stand up. 

 

Mrs. Parker said she had given this item a lot of thought. 

 

Public comment was heard. 

 

Motion carried, 3-1, with Mr. Darby voting nay. 
 

17. Discussion and Possible Decision to Pursue Remedies for Nye County’s breach of the Interlocal 

Contract between the Town of Pahrump and Nye County pertaining to 1.75 Cents per Gallon Excise 

Tax on Motor Vehicle Fuel Dated 12/05/06.   

 

 

Mr. Kulkin said he had requested six months before he had gone to Mr. Kohbarger about this item 

and Mr. Kohbarger had gone to the County however it seemed the County had not resolved this 

however he was for giving staff another try at solving these issues.  

 

Mr. Kulkin motioned to direct staff to try to resolve the issues on this with the County and 

report back to the Board.  

Mr. Darby seconded. 

 

Motion carried, 4-0. 

 

18. Future Meetings/Workshops: Date, Time and Location   

Town Board Meeting October 23, 2012, 7:00 PM, at BOCC Chambers 

 

19. Public/Board/Staff Comment 

 

There were no comments. 

 

20. Adjournment  

 

Mrs. Parker adjourned the meeting at 11:08p.m. 


